Packet Page 1

MASS‘L AMI Nur ,

* Kk k kK /

\\\V Sl TTg
(‘G
3
/S

/

C
>

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA

Pursuant to the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25, and Chapter 107 of
the Session Acts of 2022, notice is hereby given of a public meeting of the Massachusetts
Gaming Commission. The meeting will take place:

Tuesday | November 29, 2022 | 10:00 a.m.
VIA REMOTE ACCESS: 1-646-741-5292
MEETING ID/ PARTICIPANT CODE: 111 869 7373
All meetings are streamed live at www.massgaming.com.

Please note that the Commission will conduct this public meeting remotely utilizing collaboration technology. Use
of this technology is intended to ensure an adequate, alternative means of public access to the Commission’s
deliberations for any interested member of the public. If there is any technical problem with the Commission’s
remote connection, an alternative conference line will be noticed immediately on www.massgaming.com.

All documents and presentations related to this agenda will be available for your review on the morning of the
meeting date by visiting our website and clicking on the News header, under the Meeting Archives drop-down.

PUBLIC MEETING - #404
1. Call to Order

2. Review of Meeting Minutes
a. September 8, 2022 VOTE

3. Administrative Update — Karen Wells, Executive Director
a. Casino Update — Bruce Band, Assistant Director, IEB and Gaming Agents
Divisions Chief

4. Racing Division- Dr. Alex Lightbown, Director and Chief Veterinarian
a. Plainridge Park Casino Racing Schedule Update — Steve O’Toole, Director
of Racing at PPC

5. IT Solutions for Public Records Responses — Karen Wells, Executive Director; Carrie
Torrisi, Deputy General Counsel; Caitlin Monahan, Deputy General Counsel; Katrina

Jagroop-Gomes, Chief Information Officer

6. Sports Wagering Process Updates — Karen Wells, Executive Director

* % & Kok

MHHHHL'IILIHL'.“_H (_‘;".lTlliHH (_:(]Tllllﬁﬁﬁi("l
101 Federal Hrmrr, 12th |‘\[|'u'al', lhmr(m, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | ww ‘\\.III:IP;?;_\\_"illlliII_L"\.(‘UIII




Packet Page 2

a. Discussion regarding MGM Springfield’s application submission: 205 CMR
211.01(1)(b), voted and approved via emergency regulation on October 7,
2022 VOTE

b. Applications Processing Update- Loretta Lillios, Director of Investigations
and Enforcement Bureau

7. Commissioner Updates

8. Other Business - Reserved for matters the Chair did not reasonably anticipate at the time of
posting.

I certify that this Notice was posted as “Massachusetts Gaming Commission Meeting” at www.massgaming.com
and emailed to regs@sec.state.ma.us. Posted to Website: November 23, 2022 | 10:00 a.m. EST

November 21, 2022

Ca'(;/u],)ju Al Jtuﬁ\)

Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair

If there are any questions pertaining to accessibility and/or further assistance is needed, please email
crystal.beauchemin@massgaming.gov.

* k k Kk %k

Muhh'.u_lll_lh{_'llh (;;"‘IT”i”‘L{ (.._:{”T"”iﬁﬁi(”]
101 Federal Street, 12 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617,979.8400 | FAX 617.725,0258 WWW,IMASSZAMIng.com



http://www.massgaming.com/
mailto:regs@sec.state.ma.us

Packet Page 3

Massachusetts Gaming Commission

Meeting Minutes

Date/Time: September 8, 2022, 9:30 a.m.

Place: Massachusetts Gaming Commission
VIA CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER: 1-646-741-5292
PARTICIPANT CODE: 111 729 9209

The Commission conducted this public meeting remotely utilizing collaboration
technology. Use of this technology was intended to ensure an adequate, alternative means
of public access to the Commission’s deliberations for any interested member of the
public.

Commissioners Present:

Chair Cathy Judd-Stein
Commissioner Eileen O’Brien
Commissioner Bradford Hill
Commissioner Nakisha Skinner
Commissioner Jordan Maynard

1. Call to Order (00:15)

Chair Judd-Stein called to order the 390" Public Meeting of the Massachusetts Gaming
Commission (“Commission”). Roll call attendance was conducted, and all five commissioners
were present for the meeting.

Chair Judd-Stein provided opening remarks to clarify the Commission’s obligations as an
agency. She stated that the Commission was a public body required to do its work in public, and
the Commission was bound by the Open Meeting Law. She stated that public meeting are
meetings that are held in public, and that public hearings allow the citizens of Massachusetts to
voice their opinions and comment.

Commissioner O’Brien expressed that she appreciated these comments and that the
implementation of sports wagering in the Commonwealth should be equitable and inclusive of
all interests. Commissioner O’Brien noted that looking at other jurisdictions the median time
taken to implement sports wagering following the signing of sports wagering legislation was
eight months.

Commissioner Hill stated that while listening to the radio a guest on the radio show stated that
Massachusetts may allow a bet within three weeks. Commissioner Hill explained that timeframe

Page 1 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=15

Packet Page 4

is not possible, but he had concerns that these messages were broadcasted to a large audience.
Commissioner Hill stated that promulgating regulations takes time and that misinformation was
harmful to the process.

Commissioner Skinner expressed an interest in ensuring that the Commission is informed and
diligent in implementing sports wagering. She stated that the licensees should maintain the same
level of integrity for sports wagering as they do for their casino gaming operations.

Commissioner Maynard stated that the Commission was taking every measure to ensure a fair
process for all applicants, and expressed interest in further input through roundtables.

2. Treasurer’s Request Regarding Sports Wagering Regulations Related to the
Massachusetts Lottery (12:17)

Chair Judd-Stein introduced Deborah Goldberg, State Treasurer and Receiver General for the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Treasurer Goldberg introduced Mark William Bracken, the
interim director of the Massachusetts State Lottery and Executive Director of the Unclaimed
Property Division.

Treasurer Goldberg explained that her goal as Treasurer was for the lottery to continue to raise
revenue for consistent local aid for the 351 cities and towns in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. She stated that legislators predict sports wagering would result in $60 million of
state revenue annually, and that $16.5 million would be earmarked for unrestricted local aid. She
stated that the lottery produced $1.1 billion, and the function of the lottery played a vital role in
unrestricted local aid. Treasurer Goldberg stated that the Commonwealth sought similar lottery
impact mitigation provisions for sports wagering as were placed on existing gaming licensees.
She explained that these provisions should include the licensees’ partnership with the lottery and
cross-promotion for both in-person and online sports wagering.

Treasurer Goldberg stated that the Commission should review other jurisdiction’s approaches to
unclaimed property when it comes to abandoned sports wagering accounts and unclaimed
winnings. She explained that while unregulated stagnant or abandoned sports wagering accounts
were not considered unclaimed property, she would consider them to be miscellaneous accounts
which are reportable as unclaimed property. Treasurer Goldberg recommended the Commission
provide clearer definitions and administrative rules to protect consumers and enable enforcement
through the Unclaimed Property Division. The Treasurer’s Request was included on pages 3
through 4 of the Commissioner’s Packet.

Commissioner O’Brien questioned whether advance-deposit wagering accounts’ preloaded value
was treated as abandoned property. She expressed that she would like Massachusetts to lead on
this issue.

Commissioner Skinner agreed with the recommendations, and that other jurisdictions’ processes
can be used as guidance for consumer protections. Chair Judd-Stein asked if there were any
additional protections that could be added for Massachusetts. Mr. Bracken stated that lowa and
New Hampshire do not enumerate the issue in statute, but govern unclaimed wagering accounts

Page 2 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=737
https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=737

Packet Page 5

through regulation. He stated that the abandoned accounts can be handled directly through
gaming regulations rather than a combination of gaming and unclaimed property regulations.

He further suggested language including notice to consumers to be added, and stated he will send
notes on this to the Commission staff.

Commissioner Maynard appreciated the insights into other jurisdictions and stated that he looked
forward to the continued partnership.

Chair Judd-Stein stated that in a seminar she had attended it was stated that Nevada received $1
billion annually from casino industry wagering, similar to the $1.1 billion state revenue produced
by the lottery. Treasurer Goldberg stated that the lottery is earmarked for unrestricted local aid,
and not just state revenue. Chair Judd-Stein stated that the mandate in G.L. Chapter 23K to hold
the lottery harmless was reflected in the quarterly casino reports and Director of Research and
Responsible Gaming Mark Vander Linden’s work on financial literacy. She stated that the
Commission had already instructed staff to work with the lottery division regarding the kiosk
issues.

3. MGC Preparations for Matters Related to Sports Wagering (40:54)

Executive Director Karen Wells explained that several issues impacted the sports wagering
timeline including certification of independent test labs; regulations that would ensure a quicker
timeline; internal staffing; licensing criteria; and technology approval. The Regulation/Rule
Promulgation Process Memorandum was included on pages 5 through 45 of the Meeting Packet.

a. Constructing a regulatory framework: promulgation of regulations vs. adoption of
policies and promulgating regulations under the emergency adoption provisions of the
law. (41:47)

Executive Director Wells introduced General Counsel Todd Grossman. General Counsel
Grossman stated that the upcoming regulations the Commission would review in the coming
months would work as a framework for the Commission’s decisions regarding sports wagering.

General Counsel Grossman introduced Lon Povich, an attorney from Anderson and Krieger.
which serves as outside counsel to the Commission. General Counsel Grossman stated that Mr.
Povich would address two issues, the first being what can be done through policy vs regulation
and the second being the promulgation of regulations through the use of the emergency
promulgation provisions.

Mr. Povich explained that the Administrative Procedures Act provides a broad definition of
“regulation.” He stated that if an issue addresses the organizational structure of an agency, it
could be done in policy form, but anything that substantially effects the public should be drafted
in the form of a regulation. Mr. Povich stated that the Commission has set a precedent of
regulations governing brick and mortar casinos, and that similar issues for sports wagering
should also be addressed through regulations.

Page 3 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=2454
https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=2508
https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=2508
https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=2508

Packet Page 6

Mr. Povich stated that that emergency promulgation powers are found in G.L. Chapter 30A § 2.
He explained that the biggest difference between the emergency promulgation process and the
ordinary process is that during the emergency promulgation process, the public hearing occurs
after the regulation goes into effect. He stated that the Commission’s finding for emergency
adoption of the regulation must be based upon the preservation of public safety, public health, or
general welfare, in addition to the observance of notice requirements. He stated that the
Commission is given every presumption in its favor under caselaw not to be questioned by the
judiciary unless the Commission is palpably wrong in determining an emergency under the
statutory scheme, and that state agencies are afforded significant discretion.

Mr. Povich explained that emergency regulations are temporary, staying in effect for only three
months unless a public hearing and comment period is held. He stated once the public hearing
and comment period have occurred, the regulation can be submitted to the Secretary of State to
become permanent. He stated that due to public safety and public interest that the Commission
could promulgate the regulation by an emergency construct under G.L. Chapter 30(a).

Commissioner O’Brien asked for citations to the cases regarding the assessment of agency’s
exercise of discretion. Mr. Povich stated that the assessment of the exercise of discretion was
from Am. Grain Prods. Processing Inst. v. Dep't of Pub. Health, 392 Mass. 309 at 323, 467
N.E.2d 455 (1984), which cited Pioneer Liquor Mart, Inc. v. Alcoholic Beverages Control Com.,
350 Mass. 1, page 10, 212 N.E.2d 549 (1965). Commissioner O’Brien asked how the process
would be affected if the Commission did not utilize the emergency promulgation process, but
later discovered that it would preserve public health, safety, or welfare and attempted emergency
promulgation at the later point in time. Mr. Povich stated that the decision for emergency
promulgation can be determined at any point, and that the Commission would not be bound by a
prior determination if circumstances had changed. He stated that the Commission would require
good record of the emergency to support the determination.

Commissioner Hill sought clarification for the criteria of public interest. Mr. Povich stated that
there are strong imperatives in the legislation about granting temporary licenses, and that the
legislative imperative was the expeditiousness of implementing sports wagering. He stated that
the Legislature’s indication the Commission move quickly might be the basis for a finding in
favor of emergency promulgation, and that the public interest may be protected by having a
regulatory scheme in place to protect consumers. General Counsel Grossman clarified that the
language in the statute referred to general welfare and not public interest.

Commissioner Skinner stated that it was hard to reconcile the notion that there is a threat to
general welfare or public safety if the Commission does not act to promulgate emergency
regulations for temporary licenses for sports wagering operators. She stated that the public
hearings on these issues would be important.

Commissioner Maynard stated that regulatory review and continuous change of regulations is
standard. Mr. Povich stated that while changing regulations is standard, there is a public process
required for it. Commissioner Maynard stated that if the Commission follows the ordinary
promulgation process the sports wagering timeline would be elongated, but if the Commission

Page 4 of 17



Packet Page 7

promulgates regulations by emergency, they might not receive comments that would affect the
regulation until later in the process. He stated that the emergency promulgation process and the
required notice and comment period was not too different compared to amending regulations. He
stated he wanted as much public comment as possible on the proposed regulations.

Commissioner O’Brien stated that the Commission had a statutory obligation to implement
certain regulations prior to the launch of sports wagering and agreed with Commissioner
Skinner’s statement that these regulations may not satisfy the requirements for emergency
promulgation. Commissioner O'Brien expressed that she appreciated the cases for context.

Chair Judd-Stein stated that there was legal support for the use of the emergency promulgation
regulatory tool. She explained that while the sports wagering law is in place and the regulatory
framework is not, there was a public safety and welfare issue as a result. Chair Judd-Stein stated
that public input is essential to the Commission’s work, and that public roundtables and hearings
will continue on sports wagering.

Executive Director Wells stated that two proposed draft regulations would be heard later in the
meeting, and it was the Commission’s decision on whether the emergency promulgation
mechanism would be used. General Counsel Grossman explained that the sports wagering
regulations would mirror the casino gaming regulations, but be placed in the 200s of 205 CMR.
He stated that the Commission staff had requested flexibility to adjust numbering in sections
when the Commission votes on the draft regulations, so that formal approval is not required to
change regulation numbering in the future.

b. 205 CMR 244.06: Independent Testing Laboratory Certification (1:32:50)

General Counsel Grossman explained that the first regulation for consideration was for the
certification of independent test labs. He explained that the existing regulation, 205 CMR 144,
requires that an entity be certified as an independent test lab prior to being permitted to perform
compliance testing for electronic gaming equipment used at gaming establishments. General
Counsel Grossman stated that two labs had been certified by the Commission under this
regulation, Gaming Labs International (“GLI”’) and BMM Testlabs (BMM). General Counsel
Grossman stated that the draft of 205 CMR 244.06 would authorize GLI and BMM, and any
entity certified as an independent test lab for electronic gaming devices in the casino gaming
space, to automatically be certified as an independent test lab for sports wagering devices. The
small business impact statement and proposed regulation were located on pages 7 through 10 of
the Commissioner’s Packet.

General Counsel Grossman stated that the regulation would allow the Commission to begin
relationships with the labs and allow the Commission to contract for assistance in the adoption or
amending of industry standards regarding sports wagering. General Counsel Grossman stated
that the Commission could choose to follow the ordinary promulgation process, but should
consider the emergency promulgation process.

Commissioner Skinner asked if this regulation would be required regardless of which sports
wagering testing options are adopted later in the meeting. General Counsel Grossman stated that

Page 5 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=5570

Packet Page 8

the other regulation being discussed was regarding the approval of equipment for use, but the
independent test labs must be certified first.

Chair Judd-Stein asked if the Commission would want an audit function for the independent test
labs. Chief Information Officer Jagroop-Gomes stated that as the two labs had already been
through the rigorous process required to test Massachusetts gaming equipment, the independent
test labs undergo an annual audit of their testing facilities.

Commissioner O’Brien questioned whether the regulation should use “may” as opposed to
“shall,” which would allow for additional Commission discretion. Commissioner Skinner asked
if the language of 205 CMR 244.06 mirrored the language in 205 CMR 144. General Counsel
Grossman stated that the language was entirely different as 205 CMR 144 had a process for the
labs to be certified, whereas 205 CMR 244.06 certified independent test labs for sports wagering
that had already been certified for casino gaming. Commissioner O’Brien stated that she had no
concerns regarding the existing two independent test labs, but wanted the Commission to have
the discretion to deny certifications. General Counsel Grossman stated that her concern might be
allayed by some of the language which required obligations and reporting requirements.

Commissioner O’Brien asked if there were concerns that an entity not well-versed in sports
wagering could qualify as a sports wagering independent test lab due to being certified for slot
machine testing. Commissioner Maynard asked if 205 CMR 144 would allow a new entity to
become certified as an independent test lab. General Counsel Grossman stated that while it is a
possibility based upon the wording, the practical reality is that the two existing independent test
labs are the only potential testing labs. Executive Director Wells stated that the expectation is for
this to be an initial regulation, and that the Commission may receive more details and address
concerns within the next six months.

Commissioner O’Brien asked if there was a downside for using “may” as the language in the
regulation. Commissioner Skinner stated that the use of “may” would allow more flexibility for
the Commission. Chief Financial and Accounting Officer (“CFAQO”) Lennon stated that the plan
is to allow for specific testing requirements for sports wagering qualifications, and that this
regulation will only certify the current independent test labs. He stated that the concern of an
entity capable as a gaming lab but not a sports wagering lab applying prior to additional
regulations being written for the certification process of sports wagering independent test labs
was highly unlikely.

Commissioner Skinner asked if there is a difference between gaming devices tested and sports
wagering devices. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that sports wagering online systems have different
platforms and components, and include elements such as geofencing. Commissioner Skinner
asked if the word “devices” fully captured the technology involved, or whether the language in
the regulation should be expanded. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that the definitions in the
regulation will be changed to be all-encompassing. She noted that the two existing independent
test labs are the only certified test labs in the United States who work with privately owned
casinos. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that the term devices would be sufficient for the regulation
at the time.

Page 6 of 17



Packet Page 9

Executive Director Wells stated that if action on this regulation is delayed it would stall the
Commission’s sports wagering implementation. Commissioner O’Brien sought clarification as to
why this particular regulation was required to be expedited. Executive Director Wells stated that
a large number of technical requirements for the regulation of sports wagering revolve around
the set-up and checking of regulatory standards. She stated that this regulation is being moved
forwards as the two existing independent test labs are the only labs in the United States who do
this form of testing. She stated that the faster a contract is formed, the faster the Commission
staff can receive technical expertise and assistance with sports wagering regulation
promulgation. CFAO Lennon stated that the GLI standards were very technical, and operators
need to know which standards GLI will test to. General Counsel Grossman stated that without
the regulation, the Commission will be unable to establish which entities are uniquely positioned
to operate sports wagering, and the sixty to ninety days it would take to perform the
promulgation process would delay the launch of sports wagering. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated
that equipment shipped into Massachusetts must be certified and approved as being in
compliance with regulations and statutory requirements, and that waiting to pass this regulation
would largely affect the sports wagering timeline.

Commissioner O’Brien asked, absent the emergency promulgation, could issues arise if the
vendors were communicated with prior to a procurement process, such as utilizing the
independent test labs’ technical expertise. CFAO Lennon stated that approaching vendors for
advice is a best practice if a topic is so narrow only one or two vendors could respond.
Commissioner O’Brien sought clarification as to whether there was a risk of not receiving their
assistance if engagement had begun. CFAO Lennon stated that the typical route would require
two to three months for the independent test lab procurement.

Commissioner Skinner expressed that she did not believe the emergency procurement rules
would apply unless the regulation was promulgated under the emergency provision. Chair Judd-
Stein sought clarification regarding Commissioner Skinner’s comment. Commissioner Skinner
stated that this issue is not a threat to public safety, public health, or general welfare, and she
struggled to understand how the emergency promulgation process would be utilized. Chair Judd-
Stein stated that she did not want a delay in action to result in a compromise of the integrity of
the industry, and that counsel had provided advice as to how to responsibly use the emergency
promulgation tool. She stated that the legislation noted in the statute that emergency
promulgation of regulations could be used.

Commissioner Skinner asked General Counsel Grossman whether the emergency regulation
provision in G.L. Chapter 23N would authorize the Commission to promulgate emergency
regulations without regard to the recognized standards, provided appropriate procedures are
followed. General Counsel Grossman stated that G.L. Chapter 30A sets the standard for
emergency adoption of regulations, and that the language in G.L. Chapter 23N is nonspecific and
does not address the standard required for emergency adoption. Commissioner O’Brien stated
that she did not interpret G.L. Chapter 23N as requiring G.L. Chapter 30A for guidance.

Chair Judd-Stein inquired as to what the next steps would be should the Commission not adopt

the proposed regulation through emergency promulgation. Executive Director Wells stated that
the Commission staff would be required to perform a sports wagering timeline analysis, and that

Page 7 of 17



Packet Page 10

the process would be delayed by several weeks to several months. Chair Judd-Stein inquired as
to what impact on other processes would occur if the emergency promulgation wasn’t utilized.
Executive Director Wells stated that a delay in certification of independent test labs would
prevent expert advice on regulations regarding technology for both the retail and online wagering
process, and would impact the ability of operators to stand up operations with technical
components. Chair Judd-Stein asked if there was a risk to the Commission if they utilized the
emergency promulgation process. Mr. Povich said that there is a very slight risk, but general
welfare would seem most protected if the Commission would be prudent to move forward
expeditiously with the emergency promulgation process.

Commissioner Skinner asked if the certification of independent test labs could be accomplished
with internal policy, or would it require the emergency promulgation of a regulation. Mr. Povich
stated that the certification of independent test labs for casino gaming had been done by
regulation in the past, and that the issue affected outside parties that would not fall in the scope
of an internal policy. Commissioner Skinner noted that the Commission would be relying upon
the independent test labs’ expertise in the drafting of regulations. Mr. Povich stated that the risk
of using the emergency promulgation procedure for a regulation was less than the risk of
attempting this change as an internal policy. Commissioner Skinner asked how quickly the
Commission could hold public comment or public hearing should they proceed on an emergency
basis. General Counsel Grossman stated that the process took between sixty and ninety days
depending on the Secretary of the Commonwealth’s filing schedule, but emergency regulations
take effect immediately. Chair Judd-Stein stated that receiving public input was not a rigorous
process and can be performed quickly. General Counsel Grossman stated that the statutory public
hearing requirements required notice be in a newspaper and filed, which could not be completed
before the next week’s meeting.

Commissioner Hill moved that the Commission approve the small business impact statement and
the draft 205 CMR 244.06 as reflected in the Commissioner’s Packet and discussed here today,
and further that staff be authorized to take the steps necessary to file the required documentation
with the Secretary of the Commonwealth by emergency and thereafter to begin the regulation
promulgation process, and further move that staff shall be able to modify chapter or section
numbers or titles to file additional regulation sections as reserved or to make any other
administrative changes as necessary to execute the regulation promulgation process.

Commissioner O’Brien sought clarification regarding the language of “to file additional
regulation sections as reserved.” She asked General Counsel Grossman if these are ministerial
changes. General Counsel Grossman explained that they were ministerial changes, and that the
Secretary of the Commonwealth may require the Commission file 205 CMR 244 sections .01
through .05 as reserved prior or simultaneously with 205 CMR 244.06.

Commissioner O’Brien requested that the motion’s language “as discussed here today” included
that the proposed regulation’s first use of “shall” would be changed to “may.” Commissioner
Hill agreed. General Counsel Grossman stated this proposed change would require the
certification of the independent test labs to be brought back before the Commission as it is no
longer an automatic certification of the labs, unless the Commission authorized the two existing
labs in this meeting. Chair Judd-Stein asked if the proposed change would slow the process.

Page 8 of 17



Packet Page 11

General Counsel Grossman stated that the proposed change would add an additional step, which
could be handled quickly.

Commissioner Hill moved that the Commission approve the small business impact statement and
the draft 205 CMR 244.06 as reflected in the Commissioner’s Packet and discussed here today,
and specifically that the first “shall” in the draft regulation shall be changed to “may” and further
that staff be authorized to take the steps necessary to file the required documentation with the
Secretary of the Commonwealth by emergency and thereafter to begin the regulation
promulgation process, and further move that staff shall be able to modify chapter or section
numbers or titles to file additional regulation sections as reserved or to make any other
administrative changes as necessary to execute the regulation promulgation process. The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Maynard.

Roll call vote:

Commissioner O Brien: Aye.
Commissioner Hill: Aye.
Commissioner Skinner: Abstain.
Commissioner Maynard: Aye.
Chair Judd-Stein: Aye.

The motion passed unanimously 4-0, with one abstention.

c. 205 CMR 238.00: House Rules (2:34:03)

General Counsel Grossman introduced Associate General Counsel Judith Young to present a
draft of 205 CMR 238 related to House Rules. General Counsel Grossman explained that under
G.L. Chapter 23N, section (6)(c), all sports wagering conducted under the authority of a
temporary license shall comply with the house rules adopted under section 10, and that therefore
the approval of house rules is required for any temporary licensing. The small business impact
statement and the proposed regulation are included in the Commissioner’s Packet on pages 11
through 16.

Associate General Counsel Young stated that the legal division worked with the Investigations
and Enforcement Bureau to draft 205 CMR 238.03 establishing house rules for sports wagering
operators. She explained that house rules are policies that guide and govern transactions between
a sports wagering operator and their patrons, aimed at providing guidance, clarity, support, and
notice to patrons. She stated that house rules are unique to each entity, and that the Commission
must approve an operator’s house rules prior to the commencement of operations.

Associate General Counsel Young stated that 205 CMR 238.01-02 had been reserved, and that
205 CMR 238.03 was modelled after 205 CMR 138.02 regarding the licensee’s system of
internal controls.

Commissioner Skinner and Commissioner O’Brien noted that the regulation referenced 205
CMR 238, and questioned if integrity was lost if the relevant section of 205 CMR 238 was not
also ready for implementation. Chair Judd-Stein stated that it may be practical to include the
language “in accordance with its internal controls”. General Counsel Grossman stated that

Page 9 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=9243

Packet Page 12

section 238.03 and the following section were nearly identical to the section being discussed, and
that the Commission would not be lowering standards or lessening control.

Commissioner Skinner stated that as the operations cannot begin until house rules are
implemented, it may defeat the purpose of filing as an emergency regulation when 205 CMR 238
was not before the Commission. General Counsel Grossman stated that the next series of
regulations presented to the Commission will refer to sections of the internal controls, and that
should not stand in the way of this regulation being reviewed.

There was discussion regarding specific wording in the regulation related to how determinations
are ultimately made by the Commission and how such determinations may be disputed.
Associate General Counsel Young and General Counsel Grossman noted that they would clarify
the language based on the questions raised.

Regulatory Compliance Manager Sterl Carpenter stated that the process mirrors the current
process for casino house rules found in 205 CMR 138.02, and that the language in that statute
was clearer regarding the dispute review process. Mr. Carpenter further stated that the internal
controls regulations would take additional time. Commissioner O’Brien stated that the level of
specificity in 205 CMR 138.02 was not present in the proposed regulation, and that the
regulation required additional language. Commissioner Skinner sought clarification regarding
whether the Commission would have to approve the operator’s house rules submissions. Chair
Judd-Stein stated that the Commission was required to by statute.

Associate General Counsel Young explained that the next section provided a 30-day
implementation period that mirrored 205 CMR 138.02. Chair Judd-Stein suggested that the term
“designee” be removed as the Commission was statutorily authorized to approve house rules, and
she did not believe that statutory power should be delegated. Chair Judd-Stein inquired if the
Commission was required by statute to approve amendments to the house rules. Associate
General Counsel Young stated that the Commission would need to approve amendments to
house rules.

Commissioner Skinner suggested additional language be included to allow the Commission to
have the discretion to approve or deny house rules.

Commissioner O’Brien sought clarification regarding the requirement for “prominent display” of
house rules for online and mobile applications. Associate General Counsel Young stated that in
other jurisdictions, when using the sports wagering application, the patron must click through
provisions confirming their legal age, geolocation, and agreeing to the house rules, similar to
terms and conditions. Commissioner O’Brien asked if the Commission would have to define
prominent display. Associate General Counsel Young stated that the Commission would have
discretion to define prominent display. Commissioner O’Brien asked if there were cases in other
jurisdictions where the operator’s rules were not displayed prominently enough. Mr. Carpenter
stated that he had no knowledge of such cases, but Rhode Island has house rules immediately
accessible and displayed on the front page of their applications.

Page 10 of 17



Packet Page 13

Commissioner Skinner asked if “sports wagering operators” referenced both mobile and retail
operators, as retail operators had been referred to as authorized in-person wagering facilities.
Associate General Counsel Young stated that sports wagering operator accounts for both mobile
and retail operators and is defined in G.L. Chapter 23N. Commissioner Hill stated that in his
research into other jurisdictions, they often require that house rules be included on the operator’s
website, but don’t indicate where they should be listed. Commissioner O’Brien expressed
concerns about operators potentially having their house rules hidden in a tab that could be
bypassed. Associate General Counsel Young stated that the requirements for prominent display
would be decided by the regulatory body. Commissioner O’Brien asked if the Commission
wanted to implement a threshold minimum for prominently displayed. Associate General
Counsel Young stated that the reserved section of 205 CMR 238.01 would be for definitions, and
that the language for prominent display would be included there.

Chair Judd-Stein stated that the topic of provisions for temporary licensure of sports wagering
operators would occur on September 15, 2022, and suggested the commissioners bring further

edits for the house rules regulation to the legal division.

d. Sports wagering budget (4:12:28)

CFAO Lennon explained that the Sports Wagering Control Fund was created by G.L. Chapter
23N § 15 as a vehicle for the Commission to use for regulatory oversight of activities related to
sports wagering. He stated that initial funding of the Fund was for the application fees and
background investigation costs. He stated that once operator licenses are awarded, developing an
annual budget will be straightforward and utilize an existing tool for the development of the
Gaming Control Fund’s budget. CFAO Lennon stated that the preliminary budget request for the
Sports Wagering Control Fund was $2.2 million, but that the number may change as the
Commission makes decisions and authorizes regulations. He explained that the preliminary
request was for 12 full-time employees, 6 civilian contract investigators, as well as legal and
financial consultants.

Commissioner Skinner stated that the financial overview of regulations will occur later, and that
the staffing request is not absolute and may not be realized based upon Commission decisions.
She stated that the Commission will have discretion to utilize the funds in accordance with
ongoing developments.

Commissioner Hill noted concern that the funding request was so high and asked if it could be
mitigated. Commissioner Skinner stated that the request presented was what the financial team
perceived to be necessary initial resources to move forward. Executive Director Wells stated that
the request was the best estimate for a starting point, and additional funding may be required.
She stated that the Commission already authorized the Chief of Sports Wagering position and
requested additional personnel to support that position due to the number of potential applicants.
She noted that the number of licensees will expand from three to as many as 16, which would
require an increase in staffing in the licensing division.

Commissioner Skinner stated that the legal division was preparing over 200 regulations to
present to the Commission, and expected additional legal resources would be required. Director

Page 11 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=15148

Packet Page 14

of the Investigations and Enforcement Bureau Loretta Lillios stated that G.L. Chapter 23N
requires the Commission to identify any individuals and entities with ownership or control of
companies that apply to become operators. CFAO Lennon stated that entities for gaming licenses
typically had ten affiliated entities and fifteen individuals that required review during the deep-
dive process. He stated that the average review for suitability and application review cost in
excess of $1 million for casino gaming. He stated that he would attempt to pare down costs.

Commissioner Maynard expressed concern that there may not be enough funding, and that the
funding can be adjusted later. Commissioner O’Brien stated she felt comfortable with the
request.

Commissioner Skinner moved that the Commission authorize and initial budget of $2,193,429.86
for sports wagering operations, including the hiring of additional positions and consultant
spending as necessary, as included in the Commissioner’s Packet and discussed here today. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Maynard.

Roll call vote:

Commissioner O’Brien: Aye.
Commissioner Hill: Aye.
Commissioner Skinner: Aye.
Commissioner Maynard: Aye.
Chair Judd-Stein: Aye.

The motion passed unanimously 5-0.

e. Interim Policy for Executive Licensure (4:33:35)

Chair Judd-Stein informed meeting participants that this agenda item would not be discussed
until a future meeting.

f. Discussion of criteria for sports wagering license application and selection process.
(4:33:52)

Executive Director Wells asked the Commission for input regarding the criteria for final operator
licenses for all categories of sports wagering licenses. She stated that staff had identified several
criteria they believed would be helpful in the application review process, including the
applicant’s history of compliance or litigation history; the applicant’s sports wagering experience
and expertise; the applicant’s overall competence in other jurisdictions; the economic impact for
the Commonwealth; responsible gaming; and expertise with sports wagering technology.
Executive Director Wells noted that certain entities already found suitable by the Commission
would not need to reapply for a suitability review, but recommended that the IEB be given
authority to request supplemental information.

Commissioner O’Brien clarified that the applicant’s sports wagering experience and expertise for
the technical component should include both their retail and mobile experience. Executive
Director Wells stated that applications for licensure under categories one and two would be
separate from applications for licensure under category three. Commissioner O’Brien stated that

Page 12 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=16415
https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=16432

Packet Page 15

she would prefer a whole picture of the applicants’ experience in both retail and mobile sports
wagering. Executive Director Wells stated that more information will become available as the
applicants apply.

Commissioner Hill expressed interest in quarterly updates on community engagement, similar to
the casino licensees, and asked how mobile operators could act as community partners.
Commissioner Skinner asked if there are recommendations for the evaluation of temporary
licenses, as well. Executive Director Wells stated that the discussion regarding criteria for
temporary licenses would be the following week, as the threshold question regarding temporary
licensure must be addressed first. Commissioner Maynard stated that more information may be
required as the Commission progresses, but these criteria are a good starting point.

Chair Judd-Stein suggested diversity, equity, and inclusion should be a separate criterium instead
of elements of economic impact. Chair Judd-Stein asked if sports wagering kiosk compliance
concerns would be included in technology compliance. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that sports
wagering kiosks are considered devices and fit within the technology terminology, and that a
certified independent test lab will test for compliance concerns. She stated that properties and
manufacturers remaining up-to-date with security patches and updates was a matter of the
applicant’s competence to maintain industry standards. Chair Judd-Stein asked if the operator’s
history of data usage from the kiosks would be useful. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that small
sampled would be check as part of the assessment of the applicant’s information security plan.

Chair Judd-Stein asked whether the criteria regarding responsible gaming would include
questions regarding the applicant’s plans for promotional play. Executive Director Wells stated
that those questions would not be in the application, but included in the Commission direction
prior to launch. Chair Judd-Stein asked if the report from Treasurer Goldberg and issues
regarding diversity hiring and spend could be addressed under G.L. Chapter 23N. Executive
Director Wells stated that Commission staff will coordinate with the legal division regarding the
requirements of G.L. Chapter 23N.

Chair Judd-Stein asked whether esports would have a separate application process. Chair Judd-
Stein stated that further discussion would be held on the matter after not receiving a response.
Commissioner O’Brien suggested that given the Commission’s research, an additional criterion
in the application review would be to ask the applicants to discuss their experiences working
with researchers. Chair Judd-Stein stated that with the anticipated large pool of applicants, the
review should be fair and equitable, but there must also be enough leeway to distinguish between
applicants. Executive Director Wells stated that a point-scoring system might be helpful, but
staff would look for additional insight from the Commission when approaching the evaluation.
Chair Judd-Stein stated that if other jurisdictions had a similar application process, the
Commission staff could look towards those jurisdictions for additional procedures.

g. Discussion of process for approval for use of sports wagering systems and devices.
(5:06:45)

Executive Director Wells introduced CIO Jagroop-Gomes to discuss the process of approval for
the use of sports wagering systems and devices. Executive Director Wells stated that there were

Page 13 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=18405

Packet Page 16

different approaches the Commission could take to ensure technical compliance with
Massachusetts regulations and laws. She stated that the first option was to require licensees to
contract with an independent test lab and allow the Commission to audit the independent test
lab's results. She presented the second option, which was to allow the licensee to initially submit
certification of their platforms with the technology being compliant with another jurisdiction’s
technical standards, and then resubmit for results compliant with the Massachusetts standards
within a certain timeframe. Executive Director Wells stated she did not recommend the third
option of in-house testing or the fourth option of contracting with a third-party vendor to conduct
all testing for the commission due to timeframe concerns and issues with staffing IT employees.

CIO Jagroop-Gomes clarified that the recommendation is to begin with the second option for
temporary licensees for expediency in launching sports wagering, and shift to the first option for
future licensees. Executive Director Wells mentioned a fifth option, which would be a hybrid
style of in-house testing and contracting with a third-party but did not recommend that option
due to hiring and training issues.

Commissioner O’Brien stated that option two is good only if the Commission can trust other
jurisdictions technical standard requirements. She asked if the reciprocity should be restricted to
certain jurisdictions. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that it was her strong recommendation to select
jurisdictions with similar policies and laws compared to Massachusetts. Commissioner O’Brien
inquired that as this was a temporary process, should we include a sunset provision that would
expire. Executive Director Wells agreed that the reciprocity was for launch purposes.
Commissioner O’Brien expressed interest in a sunset provision for reciprocity for the launch of
the regulation of sports wagering. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that IT would develop a list of
acceptable jurisdictions to accept reciprocity from. Executive Director Wells asked if the list of
approved jurisdictions would have to be included in the regulation or if the regulation could refer
to a policy. Chair Judd-Stein stated that there would be value in having the list in a side-letter.

Chair Judd-Stein asked if the Commission would have auditing function during the temporary
licensure period where reciprocity was accepted. CIO Jagroop-Gomes stated that there would be

audit functions, but they would not be as extensive as the ones provided by option one.

h. Responsible Gaming update regarding sports wagering. (5:35:20)

Director of Research and Responsible Gaming Mark Vander Linden explained that the Research
and Responsible Gaming Division produced two research papers intended to inform measures
related to sports wagering. He stated that the first study was done on responsible gaming
considerations for responsible gaming policy and practice, and that the second study was done
regarding responsible gaming considerations for advertising. Director Vander Linden stated there
would be a sports wagering round table focused on responsible gaming in the following week.
He anticipated discussions at the round table would include issues regarding voluntary self-
exclusion lists for sports wagering, how to adapt GameSense for sports wagering in a digital
format, and how the Commission would implement self-imposed limitations as required by
statute.

Page 14 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=20120

Packet Page 17

Director Vander Linden explained that the sports wagering legislation contained three research
requirements. He stated that Section 23 of the Act Regulating Sports Wagering directed the
Commission to align the sports wagering research agenda with the existing research agenda
outlined in G.L. Chapter 23K § 71. He stated that the sports wagering legislation directed the
Commission to integrate two additional studies into the research agenda, one on the feasibility of
allowing retail sports wagering operators to operate kiosks and the other study on the
participation of minority business enterprises, women-owned business enterprises, and veteran-
owned business enterprises in the sports wagering industry. The Research and Responsible
Gaming Update was included on pages 46 through 47 of the Meeting Packet.

Chair Judd-Stein asked if it was possible to include these studies on Dr. Goldberg’s team’s
contract, due the December deadline required by the statute. Director Vander Linden stated that
there would be additional costs, but that he believed the additional studies would fit within the
original scope of the contract. Chair Judd-Stein asked if there was an opportunity for diversity
spending in these studies. Director Vander Linden stated that diversity can be considered, but
there was a tight timeline on moving the projects forward. Chair Judd-Stein expressed an interest
in GameSense information from other jurisdictions. Director Vander Linden stated he will return
with more information on that subject at a later point.

Commissioner Hill explained that in his legislative experience the deadline for the studies was
written at the time the bill was drafted, and the dates were likely not changed when passed and
signed into law. He stated that the intent of the legislature was likely to give the Commission
more time to complete the study, and that no consequences were listed in the legislation should
the research not be completed by the deadline. Commissioner Hill stated that he did not want the
research division to rush the studies. Director Vander Linden stated any research requires scope
and a timeline committed to the research principles and process. Chair Judd-Stein agreed that the
deadline may have been in error, but that the Commission should take those dates seriously and
provide their best efforts to meet the date in the legislation. Executive Director Wells stated that
updates on this research would be an agenda item, but no Commission action was necessary.

a. Ad Hoc Sports Wagering Paper (6:00:25)

Director Vander Linden introduced two investigators for the Commission’s Social and Economic
Impacts of Gambling in Massachusetts (“SEIGMA”) team, Dr. Rachel Volberg, Professor at the
University of Massachusetts Amherst, and Dr. Robert Williams, Coordinator of the Alberta
Gambling Research Institute at the University of Lethbridge.

Dr. Volberg stated that the ad hoc sports wagering paper examined the current status of legalized
sports wagering in the United States; a literature review regarding sports bettors’ demographics
and attitudes; harms associated with sports betting; and a review of existing Massachusetts and
National Council on Problem Gambling studies.

Dr. Volberg and Dr. Williams presented a review of the ad hoc sports wagering paper. The topics

included were the history of sports betting in the United States; variations in sports wagering
legislations; variations in the regulatory framework for sports wagering in other jurisdictions;

Page 15 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=21625

Packet Page 18

variations in operations; identified socioeconomic outcomes; issues of concern; and policy
recommendations. The Ad Hoc Sports Wagering Paper was included on pages 48 through 155 of
the Meeting Packet.

Commissioner O’Brien expressed interest in the idea of banning celebrity endorsements, but
questioned how it could be implemented. Dr. Volberg stated that Australia and Italy have banned
advertising during play time and other time restrictions. Dr. Williams stated that some
jurisdictions had banned advertising of sports wagering altogether, and some of them had banned
celebrity endorsements. He noted that the celebrity endorsement bans were in European
countries, but did not have specifics available. Commissioner O’Brien asked who would pay for
the proposed initiative benefitting responsible wagering behavior. Dr. Volberg stated that the
responsibility would likely fall on the operators and licensees to provide the incentives for
responsible wagering, as they already provide incentives for players who engage with wagering
consistently. She stated the funds could be raised by a partnership between operators and the
Commission. Director Vander Linden stated that he appreciated the innovative ideas being
proposed. He noted that the American Gaming Association called out celebrity endorsements as
a form of entertainment designed to appeal to youth. Director Vander Linden stated that banning
celebrity endorsements is a commonly accepted practice, but there were troubles in properly
implementing it. Commissioner O’Brien expressed interest in banning the celebrity endorsement
of sports wagering, but that there would be concerns about out-of-state casinos and sports
wagering operators not subject to the same rule continuing advertisement in Massachusetts.

Chair Judd-Stein stated that she hoped the research team would make these studies a priority, and
asked for an update on the general population survey being conducted by SEIGMA. Dr. Volberg
stated that due to resource issues, she had yet to receive field data, and would need time to clean
and analyze the data after receiving it.

4. Commissioner Updates (6:48:00)

a. Plan for Sports Wagering Roundtable

Chair Judd-Stein stated that there would be a round table on responsible gaming on September
13, 2022, with experts in the field of responsible gaming providing commentary. She stated that
there would be an additional round table, which had yet to be scheduled, for mobile operators.
She stated that there would be a meeting on September 15, 2022, regarding temporary licensing
of sports wagering operators and a meeting on September 12, 2022, to review an application for
horse racing.

Director Vander Linden noted that on September 12, 2022, PlayMyWay would be launched at
Encore Boston Harbor. Chair Judd-Stein requested a quick update regarding Encore’s
PlayMyWay at the beginning of the meeting held that day.

Hearing no other business, Chair Judd-Stein asked for a motion to adjourn.

Commissioner Hill moved to adjourn. Commissioner O’Brien seconded the motion.

Page 16 of 17


https://youtu.be/hyfmBnfLZjs?t=24480

Packet Page 19

Roll call vote:

Commissioner O’Brien: Aye.
Commissioner Hill: Aye.
Commissioner Skinner: Aye.
Commissioner Maynard.: Aye.
Chair Judd-Stein: Aye.

The motion passed unanimously. Meeting Adjourned.
List of Documents and Other Items Used

1. Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated September 2, 2022; revised September 6, 2022
2. Meeting Packet from the September 8, 2022

Page 17 of 17


https://massgaming.com/wp-content/uploads/Meeting-Materials-9.8.22-OPEN-AM-REVISED.pdf

Packet Page 20

Division of Racing

TO: Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair
Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner
Bradford Hill, Commissioner
Nakisha Skinner, Commissioner
Jordan Maynard, Commissioner

FROM: Alexandra Lightbown, Director of Racing

CC: Karen Wells, Executive Director
Todd Grossman, General Counsel

DATE: November 21, 2022

RE: Plainridge Park Casino, Rescheduling/cancelling
Live Racing Days

Dear Commissioners:

Steve O’Toole, Director of Racing, Plainridge Park Casino is requesting approval of the
rescheduling and/or cancellation of the following race days:

e 7/21/2022 race card moved to 7/22/2022

e 7/24/2022 race card moved to 7/25/2022

e 7/25/2022 race card moved to 7/26/2022

e 8/4/2022 race card cancelled, and races added to other race cards

These changes were made due to extreme weather (heat and humidity) with the best
interests of the participants (people and equine athletes) in mind. Plainridge was originally
scheduled to race 110 days. With the one cancellation in August, they will have raced 109
days, and meet the requirements of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 128C to race not
less than 100 days in order to simulcast.

Recommendation: That the Commission approve the request of Plainridge Park
Casino to amend their 2022 racing schedule as outlined above.

* %k Kk ok

MHHHHL'IILIHL'.“_H (;;’ilTllil]H (_:(Hllllﬁﬁ!ii(ﬂl
101 Federal Hrruur, 12th |‘\[|'u'al', Hl'l.‘}f(flﬂ, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massg;

IIIIIII_'_"\.t (0)) )]




P Packet Page 21

PLAINRIDGE PARK
CASINO

November 21, 2022

Alexandra Lightbown

Director of Racing

Massachusetts Gaming Commission
101 Federal St.

Boston, MA 02110

Dear Director Lightbown,

Plainridge Park Casino respectfully requests approval of the rescheduling and cancellation of the following race
days during the 2022 racing season due to extreme heat;

¢ Thursday, July 21 rescheduled to Friday, July 22

e Sunday, July 24 rescheduled to Monday, July 25

» Monday, July 25 rescheduled to Tuesday, July 26

o Thursday, August 4 cancelled and races added to other race cards

Sincerely,

< Steve O’Toole -~
Director of Racing
Plainridge Park Casino
Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC

Plainridge Park Casino ’ 301 Washington Street Plainville, MA 02762 ‘ 508.576.4500

www.plainridgeparkcasino.com




Packet Page 22

TO: Chair Judd-Stein
Commissioner Brad Hill
Commissioner Jordan Maynard
Commissioner Eileen O’Brien
Commissioner Nakisha Skinner

FROM: Karen Wells, Executive Director
Katrina Jagroop-Gomes, CIO
Carrie Torrisi, Deputy General Counsel
Caitlin Monahan, Deputy General Counsel

DATE: November 10, 2022

RE: Ultilization of eDiscovery Tool for Public Records Requests

In order to most efficiently, quickly, and accurately process and respond to public records
requests, the legal department seeks to utilize an ediscovery tool and to engage a partner to assist
with the technical elements of the tool. If approved by the Commission, Executive Director
Wells will work with CIO Jagroop-Gomes, Deputy General Counsel Torrisi, and Deputy General
Counsel Monahan to move the process forward.

The MGC’s legal department is responsible for reviewing and responding to all public records
requests received by the Commission. The Commission responds to approximately 60-70 public
records requests per year, many of which seek broad categories of materials and require
extensive and time-consuming review of documents. This number is expected to grow in light of
the Commission’s oversight of sports wagering.

Ediscovery tools are designed to allow attorneys to search across large swaths of documents for
responsive materials, tag that material appropriately, redact protected information where
necessary, and produce responsive materials to the requestor. The tools also allow for
deduplication of documents, so the same document does not have to be reviewed multiple times,
and document threading, so similar documents can be reviewed closely together. Additionally,
multiple attorneys can work on the same request, allowing documents to be reviewed and
produced more quickly.

The Executive Office of Technology Services and Security and the Attorney General’s Office,
likely among others, currently utilize ediscovery tools for their document searching, review, and

* %k k&

MHHH‘.[L'IILIHL'.“_H (_‘}‘.lTHiHH (_..\HHIHﬁHHi(HI
101 Federal Hrmrr, 12th I‘\Il'll'll', Hl'l.‘}f(flﬂ, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | ww \\.IIIJI‘;%-_‘_‘\;IIII;II_‘_"\.( 0in




Packet Page 23

production. The tools are also commonly used by law firms, including the Commission’s outside
counsel.

Currently, the legal department only has access to the Microsoft eDiscovery tool, which has
limited functionality for searching for and reviewing documents. As such, it is not ideal for
attorneys responding to public records requests. This means that the current review process is
manual and time consuming.

By utilizing an enhanced ediscovery tool and a technical partner, who would assist with running
searches, exporting documents for production, and other technical matters, the legal department
expects that it would be able to review and produce documents much more efficiently,
accurately, and quickly.

* k k Kk %k

Muhh'.u_lll_lh{_'llh (3’1[1”;”}_{ (.._:{”T"”iﬁﬁi(”]
101 Federal Street, 12 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617,979,8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massgaming.com




Packet Page 24
205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

205 CMR 211: CATEGORY 1, CATEGORY 2, AND CATEGORY 3 SPORTS WAGERING LICENSE
APPLICATIONS

Section
211.01: Applications

211.01: Applications

(1) An Applicant for a Category 1 Sports Wagering License, Category 2 Sports Wagering
License, or Category 3 Sports Wagering License must submit a fully executed original
application to the Commission using the appropriate application forms issued by the Commission
by the deadlines established by the Commission. Each application form shall be submitted in
accordance with the instructions included in the application form. The Commission shall have
no obligation to accept or review an incomplete application or an application submitted after the
established deadline. Applicants shall, at a minimum, submit the following completed forms as
part of their application for a Category 1, Category 2, or Category 3 Sports Wagering License:

(a) Operator and Vendor Scope of Licensing - Initial Survey;

(b) Application for Category 1, 2, & 3 Sports Wagering Operator License;

(c) For designated entity qualifiers, Business Entity Disclosure Form as described in

205 CMR 111.02: Business Entity Disclosure Form - Category I and Category 2 Entity

Applicants and Holding/Intermediary Companies, as modified by the Commission with

respect to Sports Wagering;

(d) For designated individual qualifiers, Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Form as

described in 205 CMR 111.03: Multi-jurisdictional Personal History Form, as modified by

the Commission with respect to Sports Wagering;

(e) Fordesignated individual qualifiers, Massachusetts Supplemental Form as described in

205 CMR 111.04: Massachusetts Supplemental Form, as modified by the Commission with

respect to Sports Wagering; and

(f) Any attestation forms required by the Bureau.

(2) An Applicant's fully executed Operator and Vendor Scope of Licensing - Initial Survey must
be submitted pursuant to 205 CMR 211.01(1)(a) as a prerequisite to the submission of the
application forms described in 205 CMR 211.01(b) through (e). Failure to submit such Survey
by the deadline established by the Commission shall result in the Commission deeming the
Applicant's application incomplete and administratively closed unless authorization is given
pursuant to 205 CMR 211.01(10).

(3) An Application for Category 1, 2, & 3 Sports Wagering Operator License submitted
pursuant to 205 CMR 211.01(1)(b) shall include, but not be limited to, the following
information:

(a) Background information related to the Applicant;

(b) The Applicant's experience and expertise related to Sports Wagering;

(¢) The economic impact to the Commonwealth if the Applicant is awarded a License;

(d) A description of the Applicant's willingness to foster racial, ethnic, and gender diversity,

equity, and inclusion within their workforce;

(e) The Applicant's proposed measures related to responsible gaming;

(f) The technology that the Applicant intends to use in its operation;

(g) The suitability of the Applicant and its qualifiers; and

(h)  Attestation forms verifying the authenticity of the information submitted in the

application.

(4) The Commission may request supplemental information from an Applicant at any time prior
to its issuance of a decision on an application.

(5) The application forms shall include language permitting Applicants for Category 1 Sports
Wagering Licenses, Category 2 Sports Wagering Licenses, and Tethered Category 3 License
applicants to refer the Bureau and Commission to prior application forms submitted to the
Commission by the Applicant or previous information otherwise obtained by the Bureau or
Commission regarding the Applicant.

10/28/22 (Effective 10/7/22) 601 EMERGENCY
(Mass. Register #1481, 10/28/22, emergency)



Packet Page 25
205 CMR: MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

211.01: continued

(6) Fees. All application fees required pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23N shall be submitted to the
Commission in a format prescribed on the application form issued by the Commission.

(7) An Applicant shall have an affirmative obligation to abide by every statement made in its
application to the Commission, including all evaluation criteria and eligibility requirements. A
misrepresentation or omission made with respect to an application may be grounds for denial of
the application or revocation of any license granted by the Commission.

(8) An Applicant shall have a continuing duty to disclose any changes in the information
submitted to the Commission.

(9) Public Records. The Application for Category 1, 2, & 3 Sports Wagering Operator License
form issued by the Commission may include information regarding how certain materials
submitted in the course of the application may be withheld from public disclosure pursuant to
M.G.L. c. 66, § 10.

(10) Extension of Time for Filing. The Commission may;, in its discretion, extend the time for
filing a complete application to enable an Applicant to cure a deficiency in its application,
provided that the application forms were submitted and the applicable fee was paid before the
established deadlines, or to provide reasonable additional time for filing in cases where
extraordinary circumstances prevented a timely filing.

REGULATORY AUTHORITY

205 CMR 240: M.G.L.c. 23N, § 14

10/28/22 (Effective 10/7/22) 602 EMERGENCY



	11-29-22 Meeting Notice and Agenda- FINAL
	PUBLIC MEETING - #404

	09-08-2022 Public Meeting Minutes 
	Plainridge request to amend 2022 schedule memo
	Plainridge S O Request for amended 2022 racing schedule
	2022-11-17 - Memo re eDiscovery
	jud-lib-205cmr211-emergency



